¥i¥ Shropshire

Council

Shropshire Council

Legal and Democratic Services
Guildhall,

Frankwell Quay,

Shrewsbury

SY3 8HQ

Date: 7 November 2025
Committee:
Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee
— Date: Monday, 17 November 2025

Time: 10.00 am
Venue: The Council Chamber, The Guildhall, Frankwell Quay, Shrewsbury, SY3 8HQ

You are requested to attend the above meeting. The Agenda is attached
There will be some access to the meeting room for members of the press and public, but

this will be limited. If you wish to attend the meeting please email
democracy@shropshire.gov.uk to check that a seat will be available for you.

Please click here to view the livestream of the meeting on the date and time stated on the
agenda

The recording of the event will also be made available shortly after the meeting on the
Shropshire Council Youtube Channel Here

Tim Collard
Service Director — Legal, Governance and Planning

Members of Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee

David Minnery (Chair) Chris Naylor

Dawn Husemann (Vice-Chair) Charles Shackerley-Bennett
Ed Bird Jon Tandy

Rosemary Dartnall Beverley Waite

Gary Groves Sam Walmsley

Malcolm Myles-Hook

Your Committee Officer is:

Ashley Kendrick Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01743 250893
Email: ashley.kendrick@shropshire.gov.uk

www.shropshire.gov.uk
General Enquiries: 0845 678 9000

Printed on recycled paper



mailto:democracy@shropshire.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/featured
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/streams

AGENDA

Apologies

Disclosable Interests

Members are reminded that they must declare their disclosable pecuniary
interests and other registrable or non-registrable interests in any matter being
considered at the meeting as set out in Appendix B of the Members’ Code of
Conduct and consider if they should leave the room prior to the item being
considered. Further advice can be sought from the Monitoring Officer in advance
of the meeting.

Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2025.

Public Question Time

To receive any questions from members of the public. Deadline for notification
is 12 noon on Tuesday 11 November 2025.

Member Question Time

To receive any questions of which members of the Council have given

notice. Deadline for notification is 12 noon on Tuesday 11 November 2025.
Financial Monitoring Report Quarter 2 2025/26

To scrutinise financial performance at Quarter 2 and identify issues that may
require further investigation by an overview and scrutiny committee.

TO FOLLOW

Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 2 2025/26

To note progress to date in achieving the outcomes of The Shropshire Plan
(TSP) and confirm that the KPIs currently agreed remain the same for Q2 of
2025/2026 and thereafter, be aligned to the refresh of TSP in 2025/26.

TO FOLLOW



10

Report of the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group (Pages 5 - 22)
Members are asked to consider the report of the Partnership Working Task and
Finish group detailing the findings of the first phase of their work and containing
recommendations for the consideration and approval of the Transformation and
Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Work Programme (Pages 23 - 24)

To consider proposals for the Committee’s work programme 2025 — 2026,
attached

Date of Next Meeting

To note that the next meeting is scheduled to take place on 1 December 2025.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3

Committee and Date

¥ Shropshire

Transformation and
= Council

Improvement Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

17 November 2025

TRANSFORMATION AND IMPROVEMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2025

In The Council Chamber, The Guildhall, Frankwell Quay, Shrewsbury, SY3 8HQ
10.00 am

Responsible Officer: Ashley Kendrick Democratic Services Officer
Email: ashley.kendrick@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 250893

Present

Councillor David Minnery (Chair)

Councillors Dawn Husemann (Vice-Chair), Ed Bird, Rosemary Dartnall, Gary Groves,
Malcolm Myles-Hook, Chris Naylor, Charles Shackerley-Bennett, Jon Tandy,
Beverley Waite and Sam Walmsley

12 Apologies

Before the meeting, the Chairman advised that agenda item 6 — Financial Monitoring
Report Quarter 1 and item 7 — Financial Monitoring Period 4 would be taken together.

No apologies were received.

13 Disclosable Interests

No declarations were received.

14 Minutes of Previous Meeting
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2025 be signed by the Chairman as an
accurate record.

15 Public Question Time
A public question was received from John Palmer in relation to the use of consultants.

The full question and response can be found on Response to Public Question Tl 8
Sept.pdf

16 Member Question Time
No members’ questions were received.

Page 1


https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/documents/s42217/Response%20to%20Public%20Question%20TI%208%20Sept.pdf
https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/documents/s42217/Response%20to%20Public%20Question%20TI%208%20Sept.pdf

[ Minutes of the Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 8 September 2025

17 Financial Monitoring Report Quarter 1 2025/26

The S151 Officer, joined by the Portfolio Holder for Finance, presented the reports for both
Quarter 1 and Period 4 and explained the difference between quarterly and period reports,
noting that quarterly reports provide a more detailed analysis of savings delivery,
underspends, and overspends, while period reports offer a monthly overview. The Quarter
1 report included projections based on data from April to June and set the context for the
financial year. The Period 4 report highlighted a worsened forecast outturn position when
compared to Quarter 1, of £35.169m, indicating what could become an illegal financial
position by year-end if not rectified.

Members were advised that the adverse scenario (£102.433m as at Period 4) was
significantly worse due to the risk of the Northwest Relief Road (NWRR) scheme
cancellation, which would make all costs chargeable to revenue.

Members noted that an independently chaired Improvement Board and three Operations
Boards—spend control, workforce review, and technical board—had been set up to
rigorously monitor expenditure, workforce decisions, and income generation, aiming to
deliver at least £2.5 million in savings and drive short- and long-term financial
sustainability.

Members raised concerns about the sustainability of Council finances, the need for
concrete savings plans, and the impact of demographic pressures, especially in adult and
children’s social care.

The importance of building up reserves for unexpected costs was stressed, with a target of
at least £5 million in the general fund balance.

Questions were raised about the status and financial implications of the Northwest Relief
Road, with clarification that the project is paused, not cancelled.

The need for realistic, deliverable budgets and robust monitoring was emphasised, with
calls for more real-time reporting and transparency.

Members noted the reports.

18 Financial Monitoring Period 4

The discussion on this item can be found inthe previous agenda item as they were
considered together.

19 Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 1 2025/26

The Service Director for Strategy presented the performance monitoring report for quarter
1.

Members questioned the relevance of certain indicators and suggested a review of
performance measures to focus on areas within the Council’s control and statutory
responsibilities.

Contact: Ashley Kendrick Democratic Services Officer on 01743 250893 2 |
Page 2




[ Minutes of the Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 8 September 2025 |

Members asked questions relating to EHCPs, housing and homelessness, FOI requests,
household waste, education attainment and use of bed and breakfasts. The Service
Director advised that a response would be provided after the meeting as KPlIs are
managed by relevant service managers.

It was agreed that a future agenda item be added to review and rationalise the data
collected and reported, aiming for more meaningful and actionable performance
monitoring.

Members noted the report.

20 Annual Customer Feedback (complaints) Report

The Portfolio Holder presented the report which reviewed Shropshire Council’s handling of
complaints and compliments over the past year, focusing on the Council’'s approach to the
new Ombudsman’s code, which introduced more stringent recommendations for complaint
handling.

The importance of using complaints data to inform scrutiny work programmes and
performance measures was highlighted, noting that the committee should focus on
patterns and trends, not individual complaints.

Members advocated for retaining internal standards for historical comparison and
practicality, rather than fully adopting external standards.

The committee acknowledged the need to balance ambition with available resources.
21 Work Programme

Members received the work programme as circulated with the agenda.

RESOLVED:

That

e Authority be delegated to the Chair, Vice Chair, and senior officers to establish a
task and finish group as needed.

e The work programme would be amended to reflect these changes, and members
will be updated accordingly.

e Reporting mechanisms for task and finish groups will be clarified in the work
programme.

22 Date of Next Meeting

Members noted that the next meeting is scheduled for 17 November 2025.

Contact: Ashley Kendrick Democratic Services Officer on 01743 250893 3 |
Page 3




[ Minutes of the Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 8 September 2025

Signed (Chairman)

Date:

Contact: Ashley Kendrick Democratic Services Officer on 01743 250893

Page 4



Agenda Iltem 8

Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17.11.2025
Report of the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group

g@ S h h Committee and Date Item

- rop(S: ° ul ,r: g Transformation and Report of the
Improvement Overview Partnership Working
and Scrutiny Committee Task and Finish Group
17.11.2025 Public

@

(Y 13 4
C AN @ Healthy
- Environment

Healthy Healthy
People Economy

Healthy
Organisation

Report of the Partnership Working Task and
Finish Group

Responsible Officer: Claire Braddock, Overview and Scrutiny Officer
email: Claire.braddock@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 258913

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder):  Councillor Alex Wagner

1. Synopsis

This report summarises the first phase of the work of the Partnership Working Task and
Finish Group, which focuses on enhancing collaboration between Shropshire Council and
Town and Parish Councils to improve local service delivery and community outcomes.
The group aim to make recommendations as to the development of sustainable
partnership models that respect the diverse needs of Shropshire’s communities.

The Task and Finish Group is made up of councillors from both town and rural areas who
have worked together to conduct research and interviews which have informed their work
to date and ongoing. This is the first of a series of regular updates to Committee which
will be provided as the Task and Finish work develops.

2. Executive Summary

2.1 The Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee (T&l OSC)
members recognise the importance of our partner organisations in particular Town
and Parish Councils and therefore identified that a Task and Finish Group should

Pagp 5

Contact: Claire Braddock 01743 258913 1 |




Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17.11.2025
Report of the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group

2.2

2.3

consider ways in which partnership working could be developed to deliver outcomes
for Shropshire people and communities more efficiently and effectively at a local level.

Given the scale and nature of the topic and its relationship to the delivery of outcomes
and use of resources, the Task and Finish Group feel that it is important to report
back on findings and recommendations to both Transformation and Improvement
OSC and Cabinet at specific points in their work.

By doing so, T&l OSC and Cabinet would remain regularly sighted upon the progress
and findings of the Task and Finish Group and be advised upon any new or refined
related work as it emerges, mindful of the timeliness of, and alignment with, budget
setting.

3. Recommendations

3.1

The outcome of the Task and Finish Group’s work to date has identified 3 key
strategic areas as follows -
e Communication

e Support and training
e Essential Information

These are areas which the Task and Finish Group feel are essential to successful
partnership working and have helped in informing the recommendations that are
detailed in full within Appendix One of this report.

Report

4. Financial Implications

4.1

4.2

The Partnership Working Task and Finish Group recognise that each community has
unique challenges and understand that what works well for a rural parish may not be
suitable in a large market town. They aim to review ways in which financial and non-
financial benefits might be achieved through the adoption of a partnership approach.

Shropshire Councils' future approach may well be shaped by the work of the Task
and Finish Group and therefore regular and timely updates to Cabinet need to be
timed to align with informing future budget setting and the setting of Town and Parish
precepts.

5. Climate Change Appraisal

5.1

As part of their continuing work the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group will
consider how the different needs of communities, geographic areas, and partners
should be built into any framework and arrangements for effective partnership
working. Developing this understanding and being able to map community relations,
ie; where people go to access services, may realise the potential for clustering of

Pagp 6

Contact: Claire Braddock 01743 258913 2 |




Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17.11.2025
Report of the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

parishes to build neighbourhood resource and strong relationships which could be
positive in reducing fuel consumption and carbon offsetting.

Background

Survey results received in early September 2025 from Town and Parish Councils
have aided the Task and Finish Groups’ understanding of which services could be
more effectively delivered locally either by the Town and Parish Councils themselves,
through use of local providers, or in partnership with Shropshire Council.

These results have been circulated and considered by the Partnership Working Task
and Finish Group, chaired by Councillor Dawn Husemann, and made up of a range
of both town and rural Councillors with a geographic spread across the County.

As a result of the survey findings and the knowledge and insight of those Councillors
represented at the Task and Finish Group, a list of initial withesses was agreed. In
meeting with this group, the Task and Finish members were able to explore in detail
any opportunities or barriers to working more closely with strategic partners, in
particular town and parish councils.

Research and benchmarking was also shared to develop an understanding of what
has worked well, both elsewhere and within Shropshire, as well as where there were
opportunities for improvement.

Since September 2025, the group has held four meetings, reviewed survey feedback,
engaged with local representatives, and focused on the planned transfer of
Streetscene services as a pilot in selected areas.

Additional Information

The Task and Finish Group recognise that this won'’t be a case of one size fits all and
that communities have differing needs, expectations and resources to deliver
services. Developing an understanding of these and listening to the needs of our
partners is key to its success.

Effective communication, voluntary participation, potential parish clustering, and
alignment with national frameworks are critical. A Memorandum of Understanding
and pilot projects in Shrewsbury, Oswestry, and Shifnal support these themes. The
Task and Finish Group recommend that communications are clear and consistent
with all stakeholders to ensure clarity of message and to build confidence.

Conclusions

The Partnership Working Task and Finish Group will continue to meet and feedback
to Transformation and Improvement OSC and Cabinet at regular intervals to keep
them informed of work as it progresses.

The group have also agreed upon two areas of focus where they feel that value can
be added, these are as follows.

Pagp ¥4

Contact: Claire Braddock 01743 258913 3 |




Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17.11.2025
Report of the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group

o The Task and Finish Group recommend carrying out a scrutiny review of
phase one — the transfer of Streetscene to Shrewsbury, Shifnal and
Oswestry town councils - 6 months after the transfer has taken place to
gather the learning from these areas.

o The Task and Finish Group recommend reviewing the “foundations
development phase” to assess the effectiveness of communication, support
and training, and information provision.

8.3 The full report, listing the activities and findings of the group, and their
recommendations in detail is attached at Appendix One.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

APPENDIX ONE - Report of the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group - T&l
17.11.2025.docx

Local Member: All Members

Contact: Claire Braddock 01743 258913 4




Appendix 1

Ya¥ Shropshire

Council

Transformation and Improvement Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Report of the Partnership Working Task and
Finish Group

November 2025

1
Page 9



Acknowledgments

The Members of the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group, chaired by Councillor
Dawn Husemann, were chosen with careful consideration to ensure that the group was
made up of a range of both town and rural Councillors with a geographic spread across
the County. Reflective of the diverse needs and challenges of town and parish councils
across Shropshire.

The Task and Finish Group have conducted research, consulted experts, and reviewed
case studies to understand effective partnership working. This evidence as well as Town
and Parish Council survey results have informed the group's conclusions and those
recommendations which are presented in this report.

The Task and Finish Group are grateful to those contributors who have provided the
information essential to this ongoing investigation and would like to thank them for their
time in meeting with them. The work of the Task and Finish Group is continuing, and this
report is one of several expected throughout the life cycle of the work, which is aimed at
providing timely updates to Transformation and Improvement Committee, and to Cabinet,
as their work progresses.

Members of the Task and Finish Group

Councillor Dawn Husemann (Chair)
Councillor Edward Potter (Vice Chair)
Councillor Rachel Connolly
Councillor Carl Rowley

Councillor Vivienne Parry

Councillor Gregg Ebbs

Councillor Alan Moseley

2
Page 10



Contents

Section Title Page no.
1 Context 4

2 Scope of the work 4

3 Objectives 5

4 What the Task and Finish Group have done 6

5 Key Findings 10

7 Conclusions and Recommendations 12

3
Page 11




1. Context

The Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee members
recognise the importance of our partner organisations, in particular Town and Parish
Councils and Voluntary Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) sector groups and
organisations, in identifying and helping to meet the needs of Shropshire communities and
understanding the demand upon services.

2. Scope of the work

The Committee have identified that a Task and Finish Group should consider ways in which
partnership working could be developed to deliver outcomes for Shropshire people and
communities more efficiently and effectively, including at the local level. The Task and
Finish Group have explored what has worked well elsewhere, and within Shropshire to
understand the scale of this work and develop a proof of concept model that might be able
to be rolled out over time. It anticipated that this partnership working will initially involve
partners ranging from Town and Parish Councils to Faith Groups, and the VCSE sector. It
has the scope to expand to partnerships that look more widely across the systems that the
Council works in with other public sector partners such as the NHS, Police, Probation,
Social Enterprise Models and the Fire and Rescue Service, to name a few.

Given the scale and nature of the topic and its relationship to the delivery of outcomes by
using resources in the most effective way, there is a realistic option that this could be a
standing Task and Finish Group of the Committee. It will report back on its findings and
recommendations to the Transformation and Improvement OSC at specific points in the
work and will also share key updates with the Town and Parishes Internal board. This
would enable the committee to task the group with new or refined work related to the
groups remit as it emerges and make recommendations to Cabinet/decision makers.

The Task and Finish Group will take account of partnership options and look to identify
best practice and opportunities to enable more area-based locality partnerships to be
developed for different geographies and communities in Shropshire. This will include
considering options to empower local partners, in particular Town and Parish Councils, to
make decisions that they feel will have the greatest impact upon their communities, drawing
in benchmarking with other local authorities and horizon scanning of upcoming and
developing legislation.

The Committee recognises that each community has unique demands, and they
understand that what works well for a rural parish may not be suitable in a large market
town. The Councils' future approach in Shropshire will be shaped by the work of the Task
and Finish Group and the Committee and be reflective and supportive of these differences.

4
Page 12



3. Objectives

Opportunities to deliver outcomes and services locally differently

To understand fully what can be achieved, what could work well and where, and any
blockers that might prevent success.

Identify suitable services that could be put forward to inform the development of working
models/proof of concept, to be piloted in the short term.

To explore opportunities and possibilities to expand involvement in the delivery of
shared outcomes for residents and communities and align and increase resource
opportunities to achieve this e.g. through the involvement of the third sector and through
different grant funding streams

Options for developing a Local Partnership in Shropshire

To identify and recommend opportunities to improve engagement opportunities for
partners with Shropshire Council develop effective local partnership arrangements
including, either by Town and Parish Councils, VCSE organisations, other strategic
partners, local providers, individually, together and / or in collaboration with Shropshire
Council.

To consider options for how a new style of partnership might work in practice and
develop a policy around this for Shropshire, utilising best practice and what works in
other places to do this (England/UK/internationally).

To review ways in which financial and non-financial benefits might be achieved through
the adoption of a partnership approach.

To develop understanding of and recommending how levels of demand and need are
identified and forecast by different partner organisations. How these can be aligned and
applied consistently to inform the identification of shared outcomes, partnership decision
making and improved progress and impact management.

To consider how the different needs of communities, geographic areas, and partners
should be built into any framework and arrangements for effective partnership working.
Understand and map community relations, where people go to access services and
potential for clustering of parishes to build resource and strong relationships.

To identify options to establish and develop the relationships between local
partnerships, and between local partnerships and more strategic partnerships e.g. those

that are countywide.

To help shape a new and long-term policy for Shropshire Council to develop their local
partnership working, starting with Town and Parish Councils and the VCSE sector.

5
Page 13



4. What the Task and Finish Group have done?

The Partnership Working Task and Finish Group was formed early September 2025 and
have held four meetings to date to understand the scale and scope of the project and speak
to relevant witnesses to better understand any challenges or opportunities presented.
Further evidence gathering, desk based research and review has taken place in between
meetings to consider the key information, learn from other local authorities and close any
gaps in understanding.

The Task and Finish Group Members cover a variety of areas including Ludlow and
Bridgnorth plus rural parishes in both north and south of the county and they have
undertaken informal discussions with their parish councils.

In addition, a survey was sent to all Town and Parish Councils in June 2025 which
remained open until September 2025. The results of the Town and Parish Survey are
depicted as an infographic at the end of this report as Appendix I. Further to its completion
the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group have reviewed the results and feedback
received and used this information to consider where there are areas of improvement,
quick wins and longer-term projects, and how these can be implemented and supported
by Shropshire Council.

At their first meeting as a group on the 16" September 2025 the group worked hard to
clarify the focus of their investigations and determine where they could have the most
impact. Mindful of the quantity and breadth of all 153 towns and parishes this could
become a large and widespread topic for a Task and Finish Group and therefore Task and
Finish Group Members were keen to pinpoint areas in which they could most effectively
contribute, pooling their local knowledge and experience to further explore the capacity
and appetite of towns and parishes to work in partnership with Shropshire Council. This
led to a revised terms of reference which better reflected their mutual understanding of how
this work would take shape.

They agreed that headline feedback would be made to Cabinet on the 15" October to
confirm the overarching principles, and the feasibility of partnership working, envisaging
18 months to 2 years until fully operational. This would be the first of several touchpoint
reports to Cabinet and to Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny as this
work progresses so that both committees are sighted throughout the course of this work.
This is particularly important and timely in line with when budgets precepts are due to be
set.

The group discussed how this work is not limited to town and parish council engagement,
but that there were opportunities to scale this out in time to include fire services, voluntary
sector organisations, police, and others.

All the group could see the value in retaining the Shropshire pound and commissioning
local providers to provide local services ie cutting hedgerows, stressing that no town or
parish council should be compelled to join if they don’t wish to. This is not something that
should be imposed but it might open up possibilities to those who are keen and able to do
more themselves.

6
Page 14



There are almost 2,000 town and parish councils within Shropshire many of whom may
require training and support to take on additional responsibility and may have the desire to
want to do so, with the appropriate enablers.

The Task and Finish Group heard how this work links to the national Neighbourhood
Governance Review and the Local Government Outcomes Framework and were mindful
of ensuring alignment as their work progresses. These frameworks still need to be
reviewed in detail and the links clarified.

At this 16" September meeting the group were keen to hear about the experiences of their
own Members and the engagement that they had already had within their local towns and
parishes. In doing so they quickly understood the differentiations of scale and challenges
faced amongst just the small cross section represented at the Task and Finish Group.
They were eager to hear from a range of other areas and shortlisted a number of towns
and parishes that they would like to engage with in future meetings, from a geographical
spread across the County.

During the course of their conversations at the next Task and Finish Group meeting on the
22 September, the group sought a clear definition of what services were statutory and
non-statutory. In order for town and parish councils to understand what is required of them,
the group felt that this information was essential to the success of the Partnership Plan and
needed to be clarified. A services audit carried out by Town and Parish Council’s and
separately by Shropshire council to identify the current position and be clear about who
currently does what would also be essential in negotiations with town and parishes, in order
to be clear of the level of commitment expected.

The Deputy Leader of Shropshire Council confirmed at this meeting that due to the financial
emergency at Shropshire Council services would continue to be cut year on year without
intervention, although they are not near the statutory minimum at present this could be a
very real likelihood in future. Therefore, consideration of what could be devolved and what
could be delegated is essential. A Memorandum of Understanding is going ahead as proof
of concept testing in those areas who are ready and willing to get underway. This will test
out what works and where there are challenges to delivering services in this new way.

At the moment the proof of concept areas include Shrewsbury, Oswestry and Shifnal, but
the Deputy Leader explained that small scale parish cluster schemes are also a
consideration, as well as external partners involvement, such as the ICB, post offices or
the police as examples. A member also added the option to engage with Corporate Social
Responsibility schemes as part of this.

The group recognised that developing an understanding of where residents travel to
access services would be useful, mapping community relations particularly in those areas
that may choose to form a cluster.

The group discussed how improved dispersion of CIL might help enable towns and
parishes and felt that some of the work of the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group
would be likely to align with the work of the CIL Task and Finish Group which is expected
to launch mid-October.

7
Page 15



All agreed that the motivation for the Task and Finish Groups work was improving
residents’ lives, improving services and saving money, for the benefits of communities and
the voluntary sector. In order to realise its success, three key questions needed to be
understood -

What can be done?

What will work and where — what would a model look like?

What are the blockers to enabling this, and how can they be unblocked?

The Task and Finish Group were also keen to explore the policy development aspect of
this work.

The Task and Finish Group next met on the 29" September 2025 and were joined by the
Town Clerk for Shrewsbury Town Council and the Mayor of Church Stretton.

The Mayor of Church Stretton described how they have a population of just under 5,000
people with a catchment of 200 square miles, they have 8 staff, 200 acres of parkland to
manage and around 80% of the enquiries they receive as a Town Council relate to services
managed by Shropshire Council. The Task and Finish Group heard how residents are not
clear on who provides the services they receive, many residents access services from
outside of their parish and there is reliance upon public transport, buses, to make this
movement possible. The Mayor of Church Stretton explained that resident engagement
regarding the impact of the financial emergency was already underway.

Members of the Task and Finish Group confirmed that this is a case of asking Town and
Parish Councils what they would like to take on, and not an imposition of services, however
due to the financial emergency at Shropshire Council any vacuum created by withdrawal
of services would need to be filled. The Mayor of Church Stretton asked that a services
audit is provided in order to help Town and Parish Councils understand what services are
provided by Shropshire Council, which ones are statutory, which ones are not and what
are the minimum statutory service levels in each service area. This insight would help
Town and Parish Councils understand what is at risk.

The Task and Finish Group heard from the Clerk of Shrewsbury Town Council about the
Stepping Up team who are already making a difference by maintaining and enhancing
Shrewsbury’s public spaces. The Town Clerk added that Shrewsbury are in a position to
take on a number of services and are enthusiastic about doing so, but central recharges
need to be understood, HR, Payroll, Insurance for example.

It was felt that the memorandum of understanding puts the fundamental principles of
partnership working together, and the pilot schemes can provide modelling as to how this
can work well, if scaled out wider. Good communications, clear messaging, and
collaboration are also essential to its success, both with towns and parishes but also with
residents.

The Chair of the Task and Finish Group asked the witnesses what they needed from
Shropshire Council to help make this happen. In response the Mayor of Church Stretton
explained that an understanding of the economies of scale is key, as well as determining
what role Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funding might play and sharing the
information necessary to ensuring towns and parishes are fully aware of what services are
at risk. The Shrewsbury Town Council Clerk added that a single point of contact to break

8
Page 16



down barriers and open doors was essential, as was the need for precepts to be set for
the whole of an electoral term.

On the 10t October the Task and Finish Group met with Highways and Streetscene
Officers to discuss the devolution of Streetscene services, which is already being prepared
for pilot in Shrewsbury, Oswestry and Shifnal.

The Service Director Infrastructure reported that Shrewsbury, Oswestry, and Shifnal Town
Councils have indicated interest in assuming Streetscene responsibilities. Each council
may have different requirements and expectations, and the timeline for progress will align
with the setting of precepts. Work is currently underway with Shrewsbury Town Council to
provide their own Streetscene services beginning 1 April 2026, with further engagement
planned with other Town and Parish Councils as appropriate.

The group heard how this was not prescriptive but would take into account the available
resources, budget, environment to inform the type of service required which may include
sweeping, litter picking, waste bins for example. Mindful that some towns and parishes
already do undertake some of these activities, the group heard that Streetscene officers
will be working through delivery options, not only for maintaining but enhancing services,
above the existing standard perhaps through rewilding or planting of flowers.

The Task and Finish Group members felt that there should be clarity of different economies
of scale that would make aspects of a service viable and that it would be beneficial for the
Council to establish a way to collect and measure benefits of working in this way.

The Service Director Infrastructure and the Streetscene Manager are preparing a report
detailing data regarding the proposed transfer of services, including TUPE considerations
and financial modelling. This report aims to provide information on available options,
opportunities, and associated risks.

At this point it was becoming clear that several key themes were emerging. Task and
Finish Group members agreed that recommendations to Cabinet should include
Communications — which had been an ongoing theme at every meeting so far. They felt
that good communications with Town and Parish Councils were essential to avoid mixed
messages, build trust and ensure open and transparent conversations. The Task and
Finish Group recommended that this begins with the sharing of the survey results.

Task and Finish Group Members also recognised the breadth of Partnership Working
opportunities therefore it was agreed that better outcomes will come from having a more
detailed focus on specific project areas and from these build the overall picture and
coherent, overaching principles to guide the Partnership Plan.

The financial emergency has meant that the Council fast tracked launching the already
scoped transfer of Streetscene services in the planned pilot areas of Shrewsbury,
Oswestry and Shifnal in advance of the Task and Finish groups research and findings.
However, the early findings reported verbally to Cabinet in October should still be used to
guide activities in these pilot areas. As is the nature of pilots these are moving fast to test
concepts and identify learnings. The Task and Finish Group will review the progress of

9
Page 17



these pilots during year 2026-27 to take the learning into account for the wider partnership
plan.

Further recommendations would include awareness of the levels of support or training
required for Town and Parish Councils and providing Towns and Parishes with sufficient
information around statutory and non-statutory service to make informed decisions.

5. Key Findings

The Chair of the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group delivered a verbal report to
Cabinet on 15" October 2025, presenting the initial findings of the group.

At this meeting she described the work that the group had undertaken to date including the
meetings with The Mayor Church Stretton Town Council, The Town Clerk at Shrewsbury
Town Council, The Service Director Infrastructure and the Streetscene Manager at
Shropshire Council. As well as the research and review of a number of case studies of
successful partnership working arrangements including reports from:

e Rotherham

e Oxfordshire

e Devon

e Malvern Hills

¢ Northamptonshire

e Buckinghamshire

e Plus the LGA report “Local service delivery and place shaping: A framework to

support parish and town councils”

The Chair described to Cabinet how this research has led to the identification of three key
strategic areas that the Task and Finish Group feel are critical to the success of a
Partnership Working arrangement, these are as follows:

e Communication

e Support and training

e The sharing of essential information

The detailed recommendations proposed in relation to each of these strategic areas are
contained within section 6 of this report.

Alongside these three key areas and the implementation of the associated
recommendations the Task and Finish Group also felt that the following considerations
were of importance:

1. In order to enable the transfer of services as soon as 2026/27 appropriate
discussions between Town and Parish Council Chairs and Clerks and Shropshire
Council/Streetscene officers must start immediately. The Task and Finish Group
raised concern that failure to enter into discussions now could mean that Town and
Parish Council will be unable to set their budgets to take account of any service
transfers. This will inhibit or maybe even prevent any service transfers in the coming
financial year.

10
Page 18



2. The Service Director Infrastructure and the Streetscene Manager at Shropshire
Council have assured the Task and Finish Group that they have the granular level,
detailed information relating to Streetscene services and costs ready and available
now. This data is a critical element to the success of the partnership. The
agreement of the funding levels and payment regime would enable negotiations to
commence immediately.

3. The considerable reliance on volunteers could inhibit the success of the programme.
Careful consideration must be given to the impacts on and expectations of those
volunteer Town & Parish Councillors. If solutions are not genuinely developed in
conjunction with Town & Parish Councillors, there is a significant risk of failure.

4. Partnership Working has the potential to provide community and financial benefits.
However, without robust foundations there is the possibility of not only failing to
realise the financial and/or the community benefits, but they could also further
damage already fragile relationships between Shropshire Council and its Town and
Parish Councils and residents. If the transfer of Streetscene services goes well this
could build trust and aid future developments. If it goes badly, it could undermine
the whole Partnership plan.

The Task and Finish Group propose the following next steps under phase two of their work.
They would like to look at the concept of clustering arrangements and how this might work
in Shropshire along with the complexities and barriers to this type of structure. The group
aim to examine different possible approaches. These will include but are not necessarily
limited to:

e Hub and spoke networks

e Collaborative parish networks
e Blended delivery approaches
e Community gangs

Members of the Task and Finish Group would start with desk research looking at:
e Place plan geographies
e Local joint strategic needs assessment
e Local joint committees
e Emerging guidance from Government

These would help the Task and Finish Group in identifying any knowledge gaps and guide
the group towards identifying the most relevant witnesses to call.

The Task and Finish Group would like to speak with stakeholders in different geographies
and examine the feasibility of different approaches with them. The involvement of
Shropshire Association of Local Councils (SALC) in this area will be considered. The focus
will be on practical application on the ground including:

e Skills

e Willingness
e Capacity
The aim of this phase will be to provide the administration with different options which might

work for Shropshire along with the risks and opportunities of each. Mindful of the time and
resources available to the Task and Finish Group, these findings will be presented to

11
Page 19



Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet at
appropriate intervals.

The Task and Finish Group propose that Phase Three of their work, over the longer term,
might include looking at existing stakeholder relationships including emergency services,
the NHS and others and to clarify the current position by stakeholder group and locality.
The aim will be to identify a clear “where we are now position” that can be mapped
alongside the Councils’ “where they want to be” position and conduct a gap analysis to
highlight issues, possibilities and risks.

6. Conclusions and Recommendations

In addition to the approval of those proposed future plans of the Task and Finish Group
as set out in the key findings at section 5 above, Members make the following
recommendations to Committee —

Recommendation1 -
The Task and Finish Group recommend that communication going forward must
be:

e Consistent in its messaging, previously confusion has occurred about the
message itself and terminology being used, this needs to be clarified and
clearly explained.

e Sufficient to ensure that all stakeholders feel adequately informed about

o what’s happening
o The implications to them
o The consequences of these changes to them and their residents

e |t must be open, honest and two way.

e Multiple communication channels need to be used including but not limited
to

face to face meetings,
group sessions,
newsletters,

press releases.

o O O O

It is recommended that this begins with providing all participants with the results of
the survey that they completed. Task and Finish Group members have learned
that not being given the results has caused frustration amongst Town and Parish
Councils.

Recommendation 2 -
Suitable support and training for Town and Parish Councils is essential, any
breakdown in this area will mean that people simply won’t have the skills, capability
or willingness to make the Partnership Working a success.

e |t is recommended that there is provision of a single point of contact at an

administrative level to support the Town and Parish Clerks. This will enable

12
Page 20



a swift, straightforward method for them to communicate and liaise with
Shropshire Council. The Task and Finish Group believe that a named
person with a direct phone number and email is essential.

e Shropshire Council should liaise with the Shropshire Association of Local
Councils (SALC) to assist in the provision of ongoing support and training to
Clerks as this process moves forward.

e All clerks should be involved during the planning, development, pilot and
implementation phases. It is going to be vital that local plans are developed
with, and not imposed upon, our Town and Parish Councils. This is very
important as clerks will be doing much of the work.

Recommendation 3 -
Regarding the sharing of essential information

Members of the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group urge that before
people can or will be willing to engage with Shropshire Council about the transfer
of services it is critical that they are given full information about
e The services to be transferred
e What the minimum statutory service provision for each item of service to be
transferred is
e What the current cost of these services to Shropshire Council is
e How much money Town and Parish Councils will be given to carry out these
services locally and what the ongoing financial arrangements are going to
be.

e Exactly what will be expected of them and what help they will be given.

A further but important recommendation in this section is to minimise bureaucracy
and rules. Making it as quick and easy as possible for Town and Parish Councils
to engage with the partnership, taking on new tasks and then managing the process
themselves.

Recommendation 4 -

The Task and Finish Group members recommend that they carry out a Scrutiny
review of Phase one — the transfer of Streetscene to all pilot areas including but not
limited to Shrewsbury, Shifnal and Oswestry.

This should take place 6 months after the transfer of services to gather the learning
from these areas.

Members also recommend providing scrutiny of the “foundations development
phase” relating to the success or otherwise of the communication, support and
training and information provision building blocks

13
Page 21




Appendix |

% Shropshire

Councll

Town and Parish Council Engagement:
Summary Results 2025

In June 2025 Shropshire Council launched a call for information from town, parish council and
parish meetings designed to foster improved parinership working. The aim was to gather:
« Views on how the parinership should work and how to achieve an equal say in making our
communities and services the best they can be.
« Experiences engaging with Shropshire Council and thoughts on how to improve.
« Which services town and parish councils believe could be better delivered locally either by
Town and Parish Councils, using local providers, or in parinership with Shropshire Council.
The work was led by the Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee with
the aim of reporting to Cahinet and Full Council before the end of 2025.

+ A total of 132 individuals responded (126 survey responses and 6 written
responses).

= 03 town councils, parish councils or parish meetings out of 165

contacts in Shropshire Council's area.

S el + The responses were geographically diverse.

= Half of the respondents were from clerks (50.8%), with 34 9% from
councilars and others from chairpersons and groups.

+ 5h5% indicated they will engage further o discuss options.

+ When asked about overall experience of Shropshire Council in the [ast 12
manths only 9.5% rated their experience positively, 46% rated it poor or
very poor and 44 5% were neutral or gave no opinion.

= 74 of the 126 survey respondents (58.7%) believe working to solve local
highway issues has been poor or very poor. Fix My Street was referenced
within descriptions of challenges.

= A top concemn includes communication and lack of engagement (access
to officers, poor responses and lack of action).

+ Survey participants identified priority areas where Shropshire Council could
improve, with highways and traffic/road safety, communication and
engagement, street scene/environmental maintenance topping and

Future Planning seen as priorities.

working = Suggestions for improvement include single points of contact, directories

of officers, improved engagement and communication, supporting rural

areas, grants for community led activity and environmental maintenance and
many maore ideas.

s Despite 17% believing all services should remain Shropshire Council's
responsibility, others feel in a position to consider delivery within these areas:
Service H!vimnnﬂiﬂ n_uintenﬂme, street scene [sigmge,_ cleaning, litter),
Delivery minor road repairs, public spaces and grounds maintenance.
=+ (Other suggestions for local action include greater influence within planning

» Parinership delivery suggestions are similar to the list above but include traffic

Support calming and road safety, highways projects, public assets (e.g. libraries,
museums, leisure), drainage and flood response. Some also mention rights
and of way maintenance and youth services.

E g e U« Support needs for service delivery or partnership working include funding,
discussions, legal and insurance advice, clear budgets and costings,
officer support and work in clusters.

14
Page 22



Transformationand Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee High-Level Work Programme— 2025/2026

Date Topic Responsible Added to | All Member | Task and Report Previous
Officer mod.gov | Teams Finish straight to topic of
Y/N Briefing Group committee review-an
followed by update
areportto against the
Committee action plan
QF to CIL dispersion T&F Group Edward West v Report date
Bmmence the
2025
Nov 2025 | Financial Monitoring Report Quarter 2 James Walton Yes v
2025/26
Nov 2025 | Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 2 Rachel Robinson Yes 4
2025/26
T&F Partnership Working T&F Group James Walton/ Tim | Yes v Report Nov ]>
began in Collard / Ffion 2025 and at @)
Sept 2025 Watson regular )
Report intervals 3
Nov 2025 throughout 0
Eroaramme )
Dec 2025 | Capital Strategy 2025/26 - Mid-Year Review | James Walton
Dec 2025 | Fees and Charges Pricing Policy Lisa Henchey / Yes v
Victoria Doran

6 W3l



Transformationand Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee High-Level Work Programme— 2025/2026

Other identified areas of interest from Committee discussions, including topics for briefings:

Date Topic Responsible Added to | All Member | Task and Report Previous
Officer mod.gov | Teams Finish straight to topic of
Y/N Briefing Group committee review-an
followed by update
areportto against the
Committee action plan
Dec 2025 | Collaborative Budget James Walton v
Dec 2025 | Financial Monitoring Period 7 James Walton v
Dec 2025 | Draft Financial Strategy 2025/26 - 2029/30 James Walton v
Dec 2025 | Staff Bullying and Harassment Sam Collins- Yes v
Lafferty
A
Feb 2026 | Financial Monitoring Report Quarter 3 James Walton v
2025/26
F%) 2026 | Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 3 Rachel Robinson v
a 2025/26
EBb 2026 | Draft Financial Strategy 2026/27 - 2030/31 James Walton v

North-West Relief Road

Short Term Priority

Financial and Performance Monitoring of Adults and Children’s services

Medium Term Priority

Use of consultants

Longer Term Priority

|
Xie 2025 | Performance Monitoring Report Q4 Rachel Robinson . | | |~ | |
|



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	8 Report of the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group
	APPENDIX ONE - Report of the Partnership Working Task and Finish Group - T&I 17.11.2025

	9 Work Programme



